
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   November 11, 2022 

TO:     MWA Board Members 

CC:       MWA Staff  

FROM:  Michael McCoy, Executive Director 

RE:    Wednesday, November 16, 2022, Board Meeting 
This month’s board meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, November 16, 2022, at 5:45 pm at 
Metro Recycling Facility (4185 SE Beisser Dr, Grimes, IA). If you have questions about any 
items listed below, please call me at 323.6535 (w) or 707.3869 (c). I look forward to seeing you 
on Wednesday. 

The following numbered items correspond with the number of the item on the agenda: 

Consent Agenda Items for Approval  

8. Resolution 11-22-03 – Approval of Acknowledgement of Bond Reimbursement
Payment to Polk County - Action for Approval
Payment to Polk County for bond issuance for Metro Recycling Facility and refinance of
Metro Northwest Transfer Station are scheduled semiannually, in November and May,
until May 2040.  November payments will be interest only and May payments will
include principal and interest. Staff recommends approval.

Regular Agenda Items for Approval 

9. Resolution 11-22-04 – Approval to Secure one Roll-Off and one Water Truck for Metro
Park East Landfill – Action Item
Staff is seeking approval to spend up to $445,000 for the purchase of existing, or the
build of, one complete water truck and one complete roll-off truck to replace equipment
currently in use daily at MPE. The FY22/23 Capital Projects budget included $445,000
for the purchase of this equipment and the final purchase price for both trucks will stay at
or below the budgeted amount. Staff recommends approval.

10. Resolution 11-22-05– Approval to Hire HDR to Design and Prepare Specifications for
Cell D Construction and Assessment of Corrective Measures (ACM) Improvement at
Metro Park West Landfill – Action Item
The current Cell C, at Metro Park West Landfill (MPW), is approaching final capacity.
The FY22/23 Capital Projects budget included $2.8 million for the design and
construction of a new Cell D at MPW. A contract with HDR, in the amount of $96,114, for

1 of 29



the design of Cell D and assessment of corrective measures improvement at MPW is 
being recommended. The design and specifications would be prepared by January 30, 
2023, allowing MWA to solicit bids by the bid due date of February 22, 2023, and start 
construction March 30, 2023.The cost of this proposed contract was included as part of 
the originally budgeted amount. Staff recommends approval. 

2 of 29



Board of Directors 
2022 Calendar Year 

Ron Pogge 
Chair 

David Gisch 
Vice-Chair 

Dean O’Connor 
Altoona 

Mark Holm 
Ankeny 

Bob Peffer 
Bondurant 

John Edwards 
Clive 

Joe Gatto 
Des Moines 

Steve Allen 
Elkhart 

David Gisch 
Grimes 

Tom Cope 
Johnston 

Bill Roberts 
Mitchellville 

Ed Kuhl 
Norwalk 

Mark Konrad 
Pleasant Hill 

Rob Sarchet 
Polk City 

Tom Hockensmith 
Polk County 

Gerald Lane 
Runnells 

Matt Blake 
Urbandale 

Russ Trimble 
West Des Moines 

Susan Skeries 
Windsor Heights 

Michael McCoy 
 Executive Director 

Metro Waste Authority 
Board Meeting 

November 16, 2022 

Metro Recycling Facility 
4185 SE Beisser Dr, Grimes, IA 

5:45 pm 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call

2. Approval of Regular Agenda

3. Public Forum

CONSENT AGENDA 
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate 
discussion unless someone, Board or Public, requests an item be removed for 
consideration: 

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 8

5. Consideration of Minutes September 21, 2022, Metro Waste Authority Board
Meeting – Action for Approval

6. Resolution 11-22-01 – Consideration of September 2022, Monthly Expenditures
– Action for Approval

7. Resolution 11-22-02– Consideration of October 2022, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

8. Resolution 11-22-03 – Approval of Acknowledgement of Bond Reimbursement
Payment to Polk County - Action for Approval

END CONSENT AGENDA 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval – Items 9 and 10 

9. Resolution 11-22-04 – Approval to Secure one Roll-Off and one Water Truck
for Metro Park East Landfill – Action Item

10. Resolution 11-22-05– Approval to Hire HDR to Design and Prepare
Specifications for Cell D Construction and Assessment of Corrective Measures
(ACM) Improvement at Metro Park West Landfill – Action Item

11. Discussion: Final Master Plan

12. Director’s Report

13. Chair’s Report

14. General Board Discussion and Other Business

15. Correspondence

16. Adjournment

3 of 29



Page 2 of 2 

MWA Board Meeting 
November 16, 2022 

December Executive/Finance Meeting: December 7, 2022, MWA Central Office, 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 12:00 pm. 

December Board Meeting: December 21, 2022, MWA Central Office, 300 E. 
Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 5:45 pm. 

4 of 29



300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

September 21, 2022, Unofficial Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting Minutes 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was held at Metro Waste Authority’s Central Office. Ron Pogge, chair,
called the September 21, 2022, Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting to order 5:45 pm.
A quorum was present.

Roll Call – MWA Board Representatives/Alternates in Attendance
Dean O’Connor, Altoona – virtual
Mark Holm, Ankeny – virtual
John Edwards, Clive – virtual
Joe Gatto, Des Moines – virtual
David Gisch, Grimes – virtual
Bill Roberts, Mitchellville  – virtual
Rob Sarchet, Polk City – in person
Tom Hockensmith, Polk County – virtual
Gerald Lane, Runnells – virtual
Ron Pogge, Urbandale – in person
Susan Skeries, Windsor Heights – virtual

2. Approval of Regular Agenda
Moved by Clive, seconded by Des Moines, to approve the September 21, 2022, board
meeting agenda as presented. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

3. Public Forum
Mickey Berry, regional sourcing manager for Strategic Materials, Inc., commented on
partnering with Metro Recycling Facility for glass, which is being recycled into insulation,
recycled glass, and other products.
______________________________________________________________________
CONSENT AGENDA
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate discussion unless
someone, Board or Public, requests that an item be removed for consideration:

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 9
Moved by Ankeny, seconded by Clive, to approve the Consent Agenda, items 4 through
9. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

5. Consideration of Minutes of August 17, 2022, Metro Waste Authority Board
Meeting – Action for Approval

6. Resolution 09-22-01 - Consideration of June 2022, Financial Statement –
Action to Receive and File

7. Resolution 09-22-02 - Consideration of August 2022, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

5 of 29



8. Resolution 09-22-03 - Approval to Purchase Front-End Loader for Metro Central 
Transfer Station – Action for Approval 

 
9. Resolution 09-22-04 - Approval of Extension of Revenue Sharing with Respect to the 

Collection of Solid Waste Agreement – Action for Approval 
 

END CONSENT AGENDA 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Solar Panel Dashboard Presentation – Michael McCoy 

Michael McCoy, executive director, reported the solar panels on the roof of Central 
Office (CO) have been installed. Metro Waste Authority (MWA) received a grant from the 
Iowa DNR for $112,086.00 toward the project.  
 
Two kiosks, one at CO and one in the Education Center at Metro Recycling Facility, 
display a dashboard with information about the energy generated.  
 
John Edwards, Clive, asked how the panels would withstand severe weather. McCoy 
reported the panels are covered under warranty for 30 years and rated to withstand high 
winds and hail.  
 
Sarah Borzo, education and outreach coordinator, reported MWA is offsetting about 36% 
of energy consumption when comparing August 2021 to August 2022. MWA originally 
targeted to offset 25%.  
 

11. Director’s Report 
McCoy reported the Employee Service Awards have been rescheduled to October 1, 
2022.  
 
McCoy reported the white barn at the Environmental Learning Center is deteriorating 
and a decision will need to be made on the future of the barn. In the past, plans for the 
barn included renovating into a multi-use venue with classrooms. Staff will present more 
information soon.  
 
McCoy reported the service fee for use of the probe to release a frozen load from a truck 
has generated some revenue to offset the cost of operations required.  
 
The October executive finance meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust 
Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, October 5, 2022, at 12:00 pm. 
 
The October board meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, 
Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, October 19, 2022, at 5:45 pm. 
 

12. Chair’s Report 
No report.  

 
13. General Board Discussion and Other Business 
 No report. 
 
14. Adjournment 

Moved by Clive, seconded by Altoona, to adjourn the September 21, 2022, board 
meeting. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. Meeting adjourned at 6:03 pm. 
 

6 of 29



__________________________________ _____________________________ 
  Michael McCoy, Executive Director   Ron Pogge, Chair 

7 of 29



8 of 29



9 of 29



10 of 29



11 of 29



12 of 29



13 of 29



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

November 16, 2022 
CONSTENT AGENDA ITEM 8 

ITEM:  
Approval of Acknowledgement of Bond Reimbursement Payment to Polk County 

SUMMARY:  
This payment to Polk County for bond proceeds related to the Material Recovery Facility (MRF) 
and refinance of the Metro Northwest Transfer Station (MNTS) occurs semiannually. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Semiannual payments to Polk County for bond issuance for MRF and refinance of MNTS are 
scheduled in November and May, until May 2040. Each November payment is interest only, and 
each May payment will be principal and interest. The interest payment scheduled for November 
18, 2022, will be $410,825.00. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval. 

CONTACT: 
Michael Conroy, finance administrator, 515.323.6506 

14 of 29



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

November 16, 2022 
AGENDA ITEM 9 

ITEM:  
Approval to Secure Water Truck and Roll-Off Trucks for Metro Park East Landfill 

SUMMARY:  
In FY22/23, capital requests of $230,000 for a water truck and $215,000 for a roll-off truck were 
budgeted. These vehicles operate all day every day at Metro Park East Landfill and production 
on new orders is very slow. Current vehicles in use at MPE are nearing end of life, so 
replacements are needed. 

MWA staff solicited bids for both items. With long wait times for the cab and chassis, vendors 
were reluctant to quote, or hold pricing, for specialty features required, such as a hoist and tank.  

Staff has researched several options, however, feel the best and most cost-effective solution is 
to reserve a cab and chassis build slot through Sourcewell, then secure the specialty features 
once vehicle build completion has been confirmed. As a member of Sourcewell purchasing 
group, equipment is significantly discounted. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Staff is seeking approval for the purchase of existing, or the build of, one complete water truck 
and one complete roll-off truck to replace equipment currently in use daily at MPE. The final 
purchase price for both trucks will stay at or below the total budgeted amount of $445,000.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval to spend up to $445,000 to secure a water truck and a roll-off truck. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
Total cost to acquire a water truck and roll-off truck needed for daily operations will not exceed 
the $445,000 budgeted. 

CONTACT: 
Jon Penheiter, solid waste administrator, 515.333.4446 

15 of 29



Metro Waste Authority Board 

Monthly Board Meeting 

November 16, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM 10

ITEM:  
Approval to hire HDR to Design and Prepare Specifications for Cell D Construction and 
Assessment of Corrective Measures (ACM) improvement at Metro Park West Landfill 

SUMMARY:  
In FY22/23, a capital request for $2.8 million was budgeted for the design and construction of a 
new Cell D at Metro Park West Landfill (MPW). Cell D will be the last cell constructed in the 
permitted area at MPW.   

As part of this construction project, MWA will also make improvements to the leachate collection 
system on the Greene County Landfill area. These improvements will help reduce the levels of 
naturally occurring Arsenic that are found in groundwater at the site. 

The current Cell C is approaching final capacity, and this project must be completed during the 
2023 construction season. Cell C is projected to reach final capacity in the fall of 2023. HDR’s 
cost to design, prepare bid specifications, and bid review for this project will be $96,114, which 
includes $85,833 for Cell D and $10,281 for the Greene County ACM work. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
HDR has been leading the Cell E project at Metro Park East Landfill. The project has been on 
time and the construction observation costs have been under the projected amount. The design 
and specifications for MPW will be completed by January 30, 2023, with the bidding documents 
advertised that same day. This will allow MWA to solicit bids by the bid due date of February 22, 
2023 and start construction by March 30, 2023.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of a contract with HDR for the design of Cell D and Assessment of 
Corrective Measures (ACM) improvement at Metro Park West.   

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The $96,114 to design and prepare specifications was included in the FY22/23 $2.8 million 
capital request for MPW. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• HDR Agreement for Design of Cell D and ACM Improvement

CONTACT: 
Jon Penheiter, solid waste administrator, 515.333.4446 

16 of 29



17 of 29



18 of 29



19 of 29



20 of 29



21 of 29



22 of 29



23 of 29



24 of 29



25 of 29



26 of 29



27 of 29



28 of 29



29 of 29


	Board Memo - pgs. 1-2
	Agenda - pgs. 3-4
	Agenda Item 5 - Sept. 21, 22 Board Minutes - pgs. 5-7
	Agenda Item 6 - Sept. 22 Expenditures - pgs. 8-10
	Agenda Item 7 - Oct. 22 Expenditures - pgs. 11-13
	Agenda Item 8 - Bond Reimbursement - pg. 14
	Agenda Item 9 - Secure Water Truck and Roll-Off Trucks for MPE - pg. 15
	Agenda Item 10 - Hiring HDR for MPW - pgs. 16-29



